# Dr. Anne M. Alexander CURRICULUM VITAE

Anne Alexander is Interim Provost and Vice President of Academic Affairs at the University of Wyoming. She earned her Ph.D. in Economics at UW, and her Master's and BBA in Economics from New Mexico State University. Dr. Alexander's research and teaching focuses on the history of American capitalism, international economics, and health economics. She regularly speaks to statewide audiences and state and national media about the status of the Wyoming, US, and global economies. She produces an annual economic and statewide engagement report on the impacts of the University on the state, and she has authored several publications on the political and economic impacts of transboundary pandemics and the productivity effects of various diseases. Prior to her position in Academic Affairs, she was the Director of International Programs and Associate Dean of Outreach at UW. She has also served as a Resources Economist in the U.S. Department of State, Assistant Dean of the UW College of Business, and Director of the interdisciplinary Health Economics Policy Center at UW. She is an alumna of Leadership Wyoming, Class of 2013.



#### **EDUCATION**

2001	Ph.D., Economics, University of Wyoming, Laramie, WY Ph.D. Thesis: A Theory of the Interaction of Internal & External Economies in Industrial Location.
1993	M.A., Energy and Regulatory Economics, New Mexico State University, Las Cruces, NM.
1991	Bachelors of Business Administration (B.B.A.), Economics and International Business, New Mexico State University, Las Cruces, NM

#### **ACADEMIC POSITIONS**

July 2020 – present: Interim Provost and Vice President, Academic Affairs, University of Wyoming

 Chief Academic Officer primarily responsible for leading UW's academic enterprise through a pandemic and a budget crisis

2015 – June 2020: Associate Vice Provost for Undergraduate Education, Academic Affairs, University of Wyoming

- Primarily responsible for the undergraduate academic curriculum and programs, general education curriculum, academic advising and career services, and multiple academic support programs.
- Provide vision and oversight for Advising, Career Services and Exploratory Studies Center; Student Educational Opportunity programs; Elbogen Center for Teaching and Learning; the university tutoring program; and bridge, transition, and admitted with support programming for undergraduate students at UW.
- Primary responsible party for university accreditation and program review

processes; new undergraduate program development; University Studies Program; the Army and Air Force ROTC programs; and retention services, academic success and postgraduate career preparation.

2019: Senior Lecturer

2006-2015: Director, International Programs, University of Wyoming

• Senior International Officer, primarily responsible for the oversight, stewardship, and growth of innovative education, research, and experiences abroad for UW faculty, students, and staff.

• Grew endowment to support activities from less than \$10,000 to nearly \$8 million.

2013-2015: Associate Dean of Outreach for Statewide Engagement, Outreach School, University of Wyoming

2013-2019: Associate Lecturer, Agricultural and Applied Economics, Economics, Global and Area Studies

1997 – 2013: Assistant Lecturer, Department of Economics and Finance, University of Wyoming

2005-2006: Director, Health Economics Policy Center, University of Wyoming

2001—2005: Assistant Dean for Undergraduate Student Affairs, College of Business, University of Wyoming

2003 – 2006: Director of Undergraduate Studies, Department of Economics and Finance, University of Wyoming

## SABBATICALS\PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT LEAVE

2002-2003, Professional Development Leave: American Association for the Advancement of Science (AAAS) Science and Technology Diplomacy Fellow and Resources Economist/Energy Analyst, U.S. Department of State, Bureau of African Affairs, Office of Economic Policy Staff

## **CURRENT JOB DESCRIPTION**

% Teaching % Research % Service 100% Admin % Advising

## **TEACHING**

<u>Year</u>	<u>Semester</u>	Course No./Title	Cr. Hrs.	<b>Enrollment</b>
2020	Fall 2020	INST/ECON 1101, Viking Econ	3	8
2019	Fall 2019	INST/ECON 1101, Viking Econ	3	15
2018	Fall 2018	INST/ECON 1101, Viking Econ	3	15
2018	Fall 2018	ECON 1200, Econ, Law, Govt	3	149
2017	Fall 2017	ECON 1200, Econ, Law, Govt	3	142
2016	Fall 2016	ECON 1200, Econ, Law, Govt	3	149
2016	Spring 2016	HP 4976, Indep Study/Thesis	3	1
2015	Fall 2015	ECON 1200, Econ, Law, Govt	3	147
2015	Spring 2015	MBAM 3309, MBA Mgr Econ	1	14
2015	Spring 2015	MBAX 5330, Global Bus Env (O)	1.5	29
2015	Spring 2015	MBAX 5331, Int'l Bus Prac (O)	1.5	29
2014	Fall 2014	ECON 1200, Econ, Law, Govt	3	121
2014	Fall 2014	ECON 5890, MBA Mgr Econ	1	15
2014	Fall 2014	MBAM 5303, Int'l Bus	3	4

2014	Fall 2014	HP 4975, Indep Study/Thesis	3	1
2014	Spring 2014	ECON 5890, MBA Mgr Econ II	1	19
2014	Spring 2014	MBAX 5331, Int'l Bus Practice (O)	3	31
2013	Fall 2013	ECON 1200, Econ, Law, Govt	3	138
2013	Fall 2013	ECON 5890, MBA, Mgr Econ	1	21

## **PUBLISHED WORKS**

#### **Refereed Journal Articles:**

David Willms, & Anne M. Alexander, 2014, "The North American Model of Wildlife Conservation in Wyoming: Understanding It, Preserving It, and Funding Its Future," *Wyoming. Law Review*, Volume 14, Issue 2, pp. 659-702

Peter Wahlqvist, Richard A. Brook, Sara M. Campbell, Mari-Ann Wallander, Anne M. Alexander, Jim E. Smeeding, & Nathan Kleinman, January 2008, "Objective Measurement of Work Absence and On-The-Job Productivity: A Case-Control Study of US Employees With and Without Gastroesophageal Reflux Disease," *Journal of Environmental and Occupational Medicine* Volume 50, Issue 1, pp. 25-31

Anne M. Alexander, John A. List, Michael Margolis, & Ralph d'Arge, November 1998, "A Method for Valuing Global Ecosystem Services," *Ecological Economics*, Volume 27, 161–170

#### **Refereed Chapters in Books:**

Anne Alexander, "The Future of the American University," for the German Federal Agency for Civic Education (*Bundeszentrale für politische Bildung*) USA Country Report, forthcoming Spring 2021

Anne Alexander, David Finnoff, and Jason Shogren, 2012. "Human Migration, Border Controls and Infectious Disease Emergence," in *Conservation Medicine: Applied Cases of Ecological Health*, Alonso Aguirre, Peter Daszak, and Richard Ostfeld, Eds., Oxford University Press, pp. 179-191

# **Policy Posts:**

Anne Alexander, American Association for the Advancement of Science, Sci on the Fly/AAAS Fellows Central, "When Fear Comes to Town: Avoid Aversion Behavior in Pandemics," October 1, 2015

## **CONTRACTS & GRANTS**

## **Projects as PI**

- 2018: "Projected Retirement Income Gap Analysis for the State of Wyoming," Alexander AM, for Wyoming Legislature's Task Force on Retirement Security and Wyoming AARP, pro bono
- 2017: "Robots, AI in the Labor Force, and Human Rights," International Corporate Accountability Roundtable, Alexander AM, pro bono
- 2014: "Needs Analysis for Sliding-Fee Scale Healthcare Clinic and Related Telemedicine Services in Sweetwater County, Wyoming," Alexander, AM (PI) and Biggio, Larry (co-PI), pro bono
- 2014 and 2009: "Economic Impacts of Wyoming INBRE," Alexander, AM, pro bono
- 2013, 2014, and 2015: Institute for International Education/Fulbright Russian International Education Administrator Host Site. US Department of State. \$15,000 per annum
- 2013: "Labor Market Analysis for City of Sheridan," Alexander, AM, pro bono
- 2013: "Financial Feasibility and Market Demand Analysis for Telehealth Mobile Clinic for Southwest Wyoming," Alexander, AM, for Southwestern Wyoming United Way, Sub-Contract, pro bono
- 2013: "Costs and Benefits of Legal and Human Rights Reform in Bahrain," Alexander, AM (PI) and Novogrodsky N.(co-PI), for Americans for Democracy and Human Rights in Bahrain/AAAS Science for Human Rights, pro bono
- 2012: "Labor Market Analysis for Unionized and Nonunionized Firefighters in Wyoming," Alexander, AM, for the International Association of Firefighters and Hickey & Evans, LLP, pro bono
- 2012, "An Analysis of Potential Future Contributions to the Wyoming Carpenters' Pension Fund," Alexander, AM (PI) and Torell GL (co-PI), for U.S. Pension Benefit Guarantee Corporation, \$7,500, Alexander pro bono
- 2010-11: "Wyoming Health Benefits Exchange Market Analysis," Alexander AM (PI), and Krueger K. (co-PI), for Governor Dave Freudenthal and Wyoming Health Benefits Exchange Task Force, \$12,500, Alexander pro bono
- 2009: "The Economic Costs and Benefits of Healthcare Access Classified as a Human Right," Alexander AM, for the Montana State Senate, pro bono
- 2007-2008, "UW-Tunisia Partnership," Alexander AM, funded by Middle East Partnership Program, Bureau of Near East Affairs, U.S. Department of State-Funded Grant, \$100,000

## **Projects as CoPI**

2020: "The Importance and Economic Impact of the Wyoming State Parks and Cultural Resources Department Programs," for Wyoming State Parks and Cultural Resources Department, Alexander AM with Coupal, R (co-PI's), \$45,000, Alexander pro bono

2018 and 2020: "Potential Economic Impacts of the Jackson Fork Ranch in Bondurant, WY," for Hugo Enterprises, Alexander AM with Coupal, R (co-PI's), \$15,000, Alexander pro bono

2014 and 2015: "The Economic Footprint and Statewide Engagement of the University of Wyoming," Alexander, AM, and Coupal, Roger (co-PIs), \$5,000, Alexander pro bono

2006: "Incentives in Health Savings Accounts: A Pilot Study," Krueger KP, Alexander AM (co-PI's) University of Wyoming Faculty Grant-in-Aid, \$5,000

2006: "Investigating the Relationship Between Health Literacy and Adherence to Medication Regimes," Krueger KP, Alexander AM (co-PI's), College of Health Sciences Research Grant, \$5,000

2003-2014: "Prevailing Wages for State Contractors' Labor Markets," Alexander AM, and Godby R. (co\_PIs) for Wyoming Department of Workforce Services, \$25,000 per annum (Alexander pro bono 2006-2014)

2002-2003: "Male-Female Wage Disparities in Wyoming," Alexander AM, Connolly C, Greller M., Jackson J. (co-PI's) for the Legislature of the State of Wyoming, Joint Minerals, Business, and Economic Development Committee, \$10,000

## Proposals not accepted as CoPI

2015, "Project Global Officer (GO), Russian Language," Alexander, AM, Krafczik, J., Garrison, J. Day, M., and Johannes, T. (co-PI's), U.S. Department of Defense, \$2.5 million over three years.

2010, "Building Study Abroad Capacity for Post-Secondary Education in Wyoming and Expanding Wyoming-China Relations; Capacity Building for Undergraduate Study Abroad – ECA One-Time Competitive Grants Program – Competition A – Academic Program," Alexander, AM, and Mueller, B.. (Casper College) (co-PI's), Bureau of Educational and Cultural Affairs, U.S. Department of State, \$497,228.56.

## PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS AND ACTIVITIES

## Memberships in professional societies

Association for Public and Land Grant Universities (APLU),
Executive Committee member, APLU Commission on Information,
Measurement, and Analysis (CIMA)
American Association for the Advancement of Science
American Economics Association

## **HONORS AND AWARDS**

2020: Associated Students of the University of Wyoming Distinguished Service Award

2020: UW Promoting Intellectual Engagement (PIE) Award

2012-2013: Leadership Wyoming

2010: Mortar Board Tip of the Cap for Exceptional Service to UW Students

2006: UW Alumni Association Outstanding Faculty Award

2002-2003: U.S. Department of State/American Association for the Advancement of Science Diplomacy Fellow; chosen by U.S. State Department to study and assist with U.S. foreign policy on oil development in the Gulf of Guinea; the Chad-Cameroon Pipeline; anticorruption and transparency in extractive industry-based economies; and international financial institutional programs in sub-Saharan Africa

2001: Outstanding Junior Faculty Teaching Award, College of Business, University of Wyoming

1997: Attalio and Hedy Bedont Outstanding College of Business Graduate Student Award, University of Wyoming

1997: Outstanding Ph.D. Student Award, Department of Economics and Finance, University of Wyoming

1996: John P. Elbogen Meritorious Classroom Teaching Award, University of Wyoming.

# PAPERS PRESENTED/SYMPOSIA/INVITED LECTURES/PROFESSIONALMEETINGS/WORKSHOPS

May 2020, "Global Economic Trends in a World of Upheaval," for the Wyoming Geological Society, Casper, WY (via Zoom)

October 2019, "Economic Forecast for 2020," for the Greater Cheyenne Chamber of Commerce, Cheyenne, WY

September 2019, "USMCA: NAFTA 2.0," for the Wyoming Business Alliance, Casper, WY

May 2018, "NAFTA: The Pros/Cons & Impacts to Wyoming Today and Tomorrow," for the Wyoming Business Alliance, Casper, WY.

October 2018 and 2019, "Economic Forecast and Personal Preparation," for NuVision Federal Credit Union, Cheyenne, WY

2012-19 annually, "Global, National, and Wyoming Economic Outlook," Wyoming Automobile Dealers Association, various locations

2011-20, "Handbook to the Economy: The Nation's Economic Outlook and What it Means for You," UniWyo annual luncheon, Laramie, WY.

2011-19 annually, "National and State Economic Outlook," Wyoming Bankers Association annual meeting, various locations

2017-19 annually, "Global, U.S., and Wyoming Economic Outlook," Concrete Association of Wyoming annual meeting, various locations

2011-19 annually, "National Economic Outlook," Wyoming Business Report Southeast Wyoming Economic Forecast luncheon, Cheyenne, WY.

2011-19 annually, "National Economic Outlook," Wyoming Business Report Central Wyoming Economic Forecast luncheon, Casper, WY.

October 2017, "Wither Wyoming?" Wyoming Society of Association Executives, Saratoga, WY.

October 2017, "Where Wyoming Works," Wyoming Humanities Council and Smithsonian, Our Museum on Main Street exhibit tour for The Way We Worked, Cheyenne, WY.

April-June 2015, Wyoming Business Alliance "Tour 23," economic outlook and development sessions in each of Wyoming's 23 counties

June 2015, "Outlook for Southeast Wyoming and Models of Economic Development," for the Albany County Commissioners and City of Laramie Council.

April-May 2014, "Wyoming's Economic Outlook," Wyoming Business Alliance Economic Outlook Tour – Jackson, Afton, Evanston, Rock Springs, Rawlins, Saratoga, Laramie, Casper, Sheridan, and Gillette WY.

May 2013, "ACE Internationalization Lab: Working With Our K-12 Languages Colleagues," Wyoming School University Partnership "Lost in Transition" conference, Casper, WY.

May 2013, "National and Wyoming Economic Outlook," Worland Rotary Club, Worland, WY.

September 2013, "UW's Global Profile," Laramie Sunrise Rotary, Laramie, WY.

September 2012, 2013, and 2014, "Your Money Values," and "Smart Banking," financial literacy series sponsored by FINRA and Albany County Library, Laramie, WY.

September 2013, "Biotech Growth in the Cowboy State," Forward Sheridan conference "BioTECH Wyo," Sheridan, WY.

October 2013, "The Can Kicks Back," moderated panel discussion on the national debt (panelist, with Senator Al Simpson, Assistant Professor Andrew Garner, and moderator Bob Beck), Laramie, WY.

October 2013, "Obamacare: The Sound, The Fury, and the Economics," University of Wyoming Saturday University, Gillette, WY.

November 2013, "Taking Action for Generational Equity," workshop presentation for Good Mule Conference, Laramie, WY.

April-May 2013, "State of the Cowboy State: Wyoming's Economic Outlook," Wyoming Business Alliance Economic Outlook presentations – Gillette, Sheridan, Worland, Powell, Cody, Riverton, WY.

2013-2015: "ExporTech Series" for Wyoming Entrepreneur, Manufacturing-Works, and the Wyoming Business Council. Provide in-person seminars (Casper, Cheyenne, Sheridan) and webinars for Wyoming small businesses on diplomacy and negotiations, developing an export strategy, quotations and bids, the Harmonized Tariff Code, and credit considerations

March 2013,, "Foreign Policy in Flyover Country: How Wyoming Feels about What Washington Does," panelist for UW Global and Area Studies "U.S. foreign Policy in 2013 and Beyond," Laramie, WY.

October 2012, "Wyoming's Economics of Health Care Reform: Health Exchanges, Medicaid, and Provider Challenges," University of Wyoming Saturday University, Jackson, WY.

December 2010-January 2011, "Wyoming Health Benefits Exchange Market Analysis," (with Kem Krueger, School of Pharmacy, Presented to the Wyoming Health Benefits Exchange Task Force. Cheyenne, WY.

2008-10: Global Economic Meltdown: Causes and Lessons Learned, numerous presentations at UW and statewide

February 2007, "The Economics of Poverty in Wyoming," seminar for Newman Center, Laramie, WY.

May 2007, "The Political Economy of the 20<sup>th</sup> Century," two-day seminar for Wyoming History Cowboy Coalition - Natrona County School District teachers working toward exceptionally qualified certification, social studies for No Child Left Behind, Casper, WY

April 2005, Co-Organizer and Presenter, "Symposium on Energy as a National Security Issue," with Dr. Jean Garrison, featuring US Senator Craig Thomas, US Department of State Energy Analyst F. Andrew Dowdy, Ambassador Francois Dickman, and Dr. Edward Barbier, Laramie, WY.

March 2003, "Transparency and Governance in Oil-Dependent West African Nations – U.S. Policy and Alternatives," American Association for the Advancement of Science Diplomacy Fellows Forum, U.S. Department of State.

April 2003, "U.S. Energy Policy and Africa: Perils and Possibilities," Heritage Foundation.

#### **UNIVERSITY COMMITTEES**

## Committee Chair or Co-Chair (2021)

Strategic Scenario Planning

#### Committee Chair or Co-Chair (2016-2020)

Higher Learning Commission Reaccreditation 2020 Project UW Advising Council Experiential Learning Cabinet First Year Experience Development Committee First Year Seminar Cabinet Course Management Strike Force

#### **UW Taskforces** (2016-2020):

Strategic Enrollment Management Statewide Engagement

#### Committee Member (2021):

Tobin and Spitaleri Selection Committee and Commencement Speaker Selection Committee (2016-2021)

#### Committee Member (2016-2020):

Accessibility Committee Classroom Technology Advancement Committee University Studies Committee

#### **BOARDS**

Board of Directors member, Western Research Institute

Board of Directors member, Colorado Alliance of Research Libraries – UW representative

Board member, United Way of Albany County (2021 – Secretary)

## STUDENT ADVISING/GRADUATE SUPERVISION

#### **UNDERGRADUATE STUDENTS:**

Honors thesis supervision (past 6 years) 2014 - Jonathan Root

2016 - Brian Shuler

#### **GRADUATE STUDENTS:**

Graduate Degrees Completed Under Your Supervision (past 6 years)

2020, Dilnoza Khasilova, Ph.D., Curriculum and Instruction, "Adult Students' World Language, Literacy and Culture Learning Experiences in a Nonformal Setting," doctoral committee member

2017, Janice Grover-Roosa, M.A. English, "Fast Talk, Cheap Clothes, and the Consumers that Buy it All: The Rhetorical Influence of Corporate Social Responsibility Statements and the Continued Exploitation of Garment Workers," masters committee co-chair, Plan B

2015, Blessing Ugwuanyi, Agricultural and Applied Economics. "Explaining the Gender Wage Gap: The Role of the Mining Industry" M.S. committee member

2014, Mary Freeman, J.D./M.A. Environment and Natural Resources "Finding Room for Environmental Refugees in U.S. Immigration Law," committee cochair